
From: VTA Board Secretary 
Sent: Monday, July 10, 2023 5:06 PM 
To: VTA Board of Directors 
Cc: VTA Board Secretary 
Subject: VTA Information: Ridership for May 2023 
 
VTA Board of Directors: 
  
Attached is a memorandum from Derik Calhoun, Chief Operating Officer, regarding VTA 
ridership for May 2023. 
  
Thank you. 
 
  
Office of the Board Secretary 
Santa Clara Valley Transportation Authority 
3331 N. First Street 
San Jose, CA 95134 
408.321.5680 
board.secretary@vta.org 
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Date: June 28, 2023 
Current Meeting: NA 
Board Meeting: July 6, 2023 

  
BOARD MEMORANDUM    
 
TO: Santa Clara Valley Transportation Authority 
 Board of Directors 
  
THROUGH:  Carolyn Gonot, General Manager/CEO  

FROM:     Derik Calhoun, Chief Operating Officer  
 
SUBJECT:  VTA Ridership – May 2023 

 

Policy-Related Action: NA Government Code Section 84308 Applies: No 
INFORMATION ITEM 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY:  
• To present the bus and light rail ridership performance of the Santa Clara Valley 

Transportation Authority. 
 

STRATEGIC PLAN/GOALS:  
The report is an information item only. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
This report is routinely produced after each month. This report is for the month of May 2023. 
 
CLIMATE IMPACT: 
The report is an information item and will have no impact on climate change. 
 
DISCUSSION: 
May 2023 total monthly system ridership was 2,226,371, an increase of 26.2% over May 2022. 
The total monthly bus ridership was 1,848,641, an increase of 25.2% over May 2022. The total 
monthly light rail ridership in May 2023 was 377,730, an increase of 31.0% over May 2022. 
May 2023 monthly system ridership increased by 9.7% compared to April 2023. The system 
ridership (bus and light rail) in the calendar year through May 2023 is about 31% less compared 
to a similar period prior to the pandemic.   
There was a Levi’s’ event in May, the San Jose Earthquakes versus Los Angeles Football Club. 
About 6,476 fans rode VTA transit to the event. 
The replacement of the OCS (Overhead Catenary System) along the North and South Corridor  
began on May 22, 2023. Bus bridges were in place to minimize impacts to the riding public. 
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Ridership May-23 

Compared to: CYTD 

May-22 Percent 
change Apr-23 Percent 

change 

Current 
2023 

Prior 
2022 Percent 

change 

Pre- 
Pandemic  

2019 
Percent 
change 

Jan-May Jan-May Jan-May 
Bus 1,848,641 1,476,471 25.2% 1,678,069 10.2% 8,183,206 6,687,344 22.4% 11,094,411 -26.2% 

Light Rail 377,730 288,311 31.0% 352,277 7.2% 1,755,997 1,187,359 47.9% 3,393,434 -48.3% 
System 2,226,371 1,764,782 26.2% 2,030,346 9.7% 9,939,203 7,874,703 26.2% 14,487,845 -31.4% 

The system ridership (Bus and light rail) in millions from June 2018 through May 2023 is 
presented in the chart below. 
 

 
 
Note: Pre-pandemic data reflected in the chart for the months of June 2018 through February 2020 and a few days 
in March 2020. Mid-March 2020 onwards had impacts from COVID-19. 
 
The boardings per total hour and boardings per revenue hour for bus and rail for May 2023 are 
shown in the table below: 
 

 

Boardings per 
Total hour1 

Boardings per 
Revenue hour2 

May 
 2023 

May 
 2022 

Percent 
Change 

May 
 2023 

May 
 2022 

Percent 
Change 

Bus 15.7 12.9 22.2% 16.7 13.7 21.5% 
Light Rail 29.6 26.2 13.0%  31.4 28.3 11.0% 

Total hours – Includes revenue hours and deadhead hours (hours that a vehicle travels when out of revenue service).  
2 Revenue hours - Scheduled hours of service available to passengers for transport on the routes. Includes recovery/layover 
time. 

Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May
2018-2019 2.9 2.8 3.1 3.1 3.4 2.9 2.9 2.9 2.6 3.0 3.0 3.1
2019-2020 2.8 2.8 3.0 3.1 3.4 2.9 2.8 2.8 2.8 1.9 0.8 0.8
2020-2021 0.9 0.9 0.9 0.9 1.0 0.9 0.9 0.9 0.9 1.2 1.1 1.1
2021-2022 1.0 1.0 1.2 1.3 1.5 1.5 1.4 1.4 1.4 1.7 1.6 1.8
2022-2023 1.7 1.7 1.9 2.0 2.1 1.9 1.8 1.8 1.8 2.0 2.0 2.2
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From: VTA Board Secretary 
Sent: Friday, July 14, 2023 5:50 PM 
To: VTA Board of Directors; VTA Advisory Committee Members 
Cc: VTA Board Secretary 
Subject: VTA Information: 2016 Measure B Program FY22 Annual Report 
 
VTA Board of Directors and Advisory Committee Members: 
 
Please see attached 2016 Measure B Program FY22 Annual report. You may also view the 
report on our website by clicking the link below. 
 
https://www.vta.org/sites/default/files/2023-06/2016MeasureB_FY22_AnnualReport_Final.pdf 
 
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
mailto:board.secretary@vta.org
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
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